




City of Central Point Planning 
Commission Minutes  

February 4, 2020 
 

 
I. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER AT 6:04 P.M 
  
II. ROLL CALL 

 
Commissioners Mike Oliver (chair), Tom Van Voorhees, Amy Moore, Pat Smith, Chris 
Richey and Kay Harrison and Jim Mock were present. Also in attendance were: Tom 
Humphrey, Community Development Director, Justin Gindlesperger, Community Planner 
and Karin Skelton, Planning Secretary. 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIENCE  

III. CORRESPONDENCE 

Letter dated January 24, 2020 from Jackson County regarding Grant Road annexation 

IV. MINUTES 
Kay Harrison made a motion to approve the January 7, 2020 minutes. Pat Smith seconded the 
motion.  ROLL CALL: Tom Van Voorhees, yes; Kay Harrison, yes; Amy Moore, abstain; Jim Mock, 
yes; Chris Richey, yes; Pat Smith, yes; Motion passed. 

 
V. PUBLIC APPEARANCES  

 There were no public appearances. 

 VI. BUSINESS 

A. Public Hearing for a Zone Map Change application.  The zoning is proposed for 
change from Employment Commercial (TOD) to General Commercial (TOD).  The 
0.99 acres are located in the western portion of the City’s downtown corridor.  The 
project Site is identified on the Jackson County Assessor’s map as 37-2W-10AA, 
Tax Lots 6000 and 6100, Zoning Map and Zoning Code Text Amendments; and 
CPMC 17.65 TOD Districts and Corridors. 

Planning Commission Chair Mike Oliver stated this item is a public hearing and he read the rules for a 
quasi-judicial hearing.  The commissioners had no conflicts of interest, ex parte contact or bias to declare.   

Community Development Director Tom Humphrey stated this item was presented to the Planning 
Commission as a discussion item at the January 7, 2020 meeting. At that time the city was waiting for the 
traffic analysis to be completed.  The Commissioners directed him to proceed with the public hearing as 
soon as the traffic study was complete.  At this time the analysis has been completed and it has been 
concluded the zone change will add no additional traffic issues.  He explained the differences between the 
Employment Commercial zone and the General Commercial zone stating the General Commercial zone 
allows manufacturing and sales on the property whereas the Employment Commercial zone only allows 
retail sales. He said the purpose of this change is to comply with the comprehensive plan, the 
transportation planning rule and to facilitate expansion of a local business.  He said it is compatible with 
the surrounding area. The commissioners had no questions. 



Planning Commission Meeting 
February 4, 2020 
Page 2 

 

 
The public hearing was opened. 
 
Craig Nelson, Medford 
Mr. Nelson said he was the facility maintenance manager of the Rogue Creamery.  The Creamery intends 
to develop the property to expand their business.  There were no questions. 
 
The public hearing was closed.  
 
Mr. Humphrey reviewed the differences in the zones. The Commissioners discussed the various 
businesses in the area and concluded the change would not affect traffic or existing businesses.   
 
Pat Smith made a motion to approve Resolution 878, a zone map change application to change from 
Employment Commercial (TOD) to General Commercial (TOD).  Kay Harrison seconded the motion.  
ROLL CALL: Tom Van Voorhees, yes; Kay Harrison, yes; Amy Moore, yes; Jim Mock, yes; Chris 
Richey, yes; Pat Smith, yes; Motion passed. 
 
 B. Public Hearing of an Annexation application at 3364 Grant Road to add 3.16 acres 
of land into the City limits of low density residential development.  The property is identified on the 
Jackson County Assessor’s map as 37S 2W 10 BC Tax Lot 2200.  Applicant:  WL Moore 
Construction, Inc.  Agent:  Herb Farber.  File No Annex-19001. Approval Criteria:  ORS 222.125 
(Annexation by consent for all owners of land and majority of electors): Proclamation of 
Annexation as well as CPMC 1.20 Annexation Procedures.  

Mike Oliver said the rules for a quasi-judicial hearing remained as previously stated.  Amy Moore said 
she was a principal at WL Moore Construction, Inc. and recused herself.  There were no other conflicts of 
interest, bias or ex parte contact declared.  
 
Mr. Humphrey said this application is to annex land from the UGB and will increase the low density 
residential inventory.  The property is 3.16 acres located at 3664 Grant Road and is a single tax lot.  
Including the Right of Way the annexed property will total 3.44 acres.  There is an irrigation pond on the 
site which will be addressed at the time of development.  He explained the city cannot evaluate the 
property until it is annexed.  He gave examples of other subdivisions that had originally contained ponds 
and wetlands and how those had been developed in the past.   
 
Mr. Humphrey referred to the letter from Jackson County. He said the original submittal for the 
annexation included a site plan showing a subdivision.  He said the County provided comments regarding 
roads, traffic and infrastructure.  Those issues would be addressed at the time a tentative plat was 
submitted.  At this time the only issue was annexation.  He added the property would be zoned R-1-10 
which was low density.  He added Public Works has indicated there are sufficient services in proximity to 
the property.   
 
Mike Oliver asked Chris Richey to read the County’s letter into the record.  Mr. Richey did so.  
Mr. Humphrey explained how the jurisdiction of the roads would change at the time of the UGB 
amendment.   
 
Amy Moore 
Ms. Moore stated she was a principal with WL Moore Construction and would be happy to answer any 
questions.  She reviewed the proposed plans stating there were mature trees on the property and they 
would retain as many as possible.    
 



Planning Commission Meeting 
February 4, 2020 
Page 3 

 

Public Hearing was opened.   
   
Daniel Coontz, Blue Heron Dr. 
Mr. Coontz said he was very concerned about the development of that property.  He said there were two 
easements on his property and he wanted more information about utility construction.  He was upset that 
there would be trees removed.  He also wanted information regarding the pond on the property. 
 
Robin Garnica, Mendolia Way 
Ms. Garnica said her property is on the east side of the subject property and is lower than the subject 
property.  She was concerned about drainage and how that was going to be handled.  She also asked for 
information regarding the R-1-10 zone 
 
Mr. Humphrey explained the annexation is the first step in the process.   The development would come at 
a later date and would be a duly noticed public hearing and concerns regarding development would be 
appropriate at that time. The applicant would then be able to demonstrate how these issues will be 
addressed. He said there would be a public hearing on this annexation at the City Council meeting on 
February 13, 2020 and everyone was welcome to attend.   
 
The commissioners clarified the annexation was only to decide if the application met the criteria to bring 
the land into the city limits and did not address any other issues. 
 
Mr. Coontz asked if Ms. Moore was a member of the Planning Commission and if that was a conflict.  
Mike Oliver said she was but she had recused herself and would not vote on this application. 
 
Chris Richey made a motion to recommend approval of the annexation application at 3364 Grant Road to 
add 3.16 acres of land into the City limits of low density residential development .  Pat Smith seconded 
the motion. 
 
The commissioners discussed the annexation process and noticing requirements.  Several members of the 
audience expressed concern about negative impacts on surrounding properties.   
 
Roll Call: Tom Van Voorhees, yes; Kay Harrison, yes; Jim Mock, yes; Chris Richey, yes; Pat Smith, yes; 
Motion passed. 
 
 

VII. DISCUSSION 
 
 Hazard Mitigation Plan update 
 
Community planner Justin Gindlesperger said this update is a review of the risk assessment 
portion of the Hazard Mitigation Plan.  He said the purpose of the plan is to prepare the city and 
its residents to be able to recover quickly from any loss or damage.  He said the risk assessment 
process includes identification of hazards, assessment of vulnerability and risk analysis.  The 
hazards the city is subject to are earthquake, flood, wildfire, severe weather, drought, volcanic 
eruptions and landslides.  He said vulnerability is assessed by evaluating the overlap between 
natural hazards and community assets such as people, economy, built environment and natural 
environment.  The process of analyzing risk takes into account exposure analysis, historical 
analysis and scenario analysis.  He provided examples of each type of analysis.  He then 



Planning Commission Meeting 
February 4, 2020 
Page 4 

 

showed how each hazard is ranked (high, medium or low risk) and which ones the city would 
be most susceptible to.   

The commissioners discussed the different hazards. 

Mr. Gindlesperger stated the next steps will be to draft mitigation strategies and action items.   
He hoped the plan would be completed by summer.  He said after the plan has been approved 
by the City, it would need to be approved by the State and FEMA. 

B. Planning Update 
 

• Central Point Station at Twin Creeks.  It is a mixed use building with commercial use on 
the first floor and residential on the upper floors.  

 
• Domino’s Pizza is moving ahead with the lot line adjustment for the property on 

Freeman Court 
 
 
VIII. ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEWS  

IX. MISCELLANEOUS 

X. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Tom Van Voorhees moved to adjourn the meeting.  Pat Smith seconded the motion.  All 
members said “aye”.  Meeting was adjourned at 7:40 p.m. 
 
 
 
 

Planning Commission Chair 



stephanieh
Typewritten Text
ITEM VII-A: CONSIDERATON OF AN 8-LOT TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION PLAN ON 7.01 ACRES AT THE SOUTH WEST CORNER OF TABLE ROCK AND BIDDLE ROAD. 



 

140 South Third Street     Central Point, OR  97502      541.664.3321     541.664.6384 

City of Central Point, Oregon        . 
 140 S 3rd Street, Central Point, OR 97502 

 541.664.3321 Fax 541.664.6384 

 www.centralpointoregon.gov   

 
 

               Community Development 
          Tom Humphrey, AICP 

           Community Development Director 

 

STAFF REPORT 
May 5, 2020 

 

AGENDA ITEM: VII-A File No. PAR-20001 

Consideration of a Subdivision Tentative Plan for the development of an eight (8) lot commercial 

subdivision in the Tourist and Office-Professional (C-4) Zoning District.  The project site is located at 

4245 Table Rock Road on property identified on the Jackson County Assessor’s Map as 37 2W 01C Tax 

Lot 700. Applicant: South Salem, LLC; Agent: Rogue Planning & Development Services, LLC 

 

STAFF SOURCE:   

Justin Gindlesperger, Community Planner II 

 

BACKGROUND:  

The applicant is proposing an eight (8) lot commercial subdivision on an approximately 7.01 acre 

property at the southwest corner of Biddle Road and Table Rock Road (Attachment “A-1”). The 

subdivision will provide for a variety of commercial uses with common access and circulation that will 

function as a shopping center. Future developments on the individual lots will be subject to land use and 

Site Plan and Architectural Review requirements.  

 

Biddle and Table Rock Road are Jackson County Major Arterial roadways that require consolidated 

access drives to serve the proposed lots. This is accomplished with a Private Retail Street that provides 

east/west connectivity between Hamrick and Table Rock Road through existing development to the west. 

As shown on the Tentative Plan, the Private Retail Streets have been designed to meet the City’s block 

length standards.  

 

Water and sewer utilities are located just west of the subject property (Attachment “A-2”). Separate 

services are required for each parcel and will require mainline extensions into the property from the 

existing utility mains. Storm water facilities are located within the existing retail street to the west of the 

site (Attachment “A-3”).  

 

ISSUES: 

There are two (2) issues relative to this application as follows: 

 

1. Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA). The applicant’s Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) examined trip 

generation calculations for the proposed commercial subdivision and considered the effects on 

adjacent streets with current and future traffic volumes. Per the TIA, the queue lengths at the 

approaches following construction of the commercial subdivision will impact traffic on the 

adjacent streets.  

 

Comment: Comments from Jackson County Roads recommends limiting the turning movements 

from the development to right-in, right-out, left-in (RIROLI) at the approaches to the public 

streets.  Staff recommends Condition No. 2(b) requiring the applicant to complete the access 

improvements along Biddle Road and Table Rock Road in accordance with Jackson County 

requirements.  

 



2. Block Perimeter.  The newly created block, located north of the proposed retail street and west 

of the retail street connecting to Biddle Road, is 2,153 feet in perimeter and exceeds the 2,000 

foot block perimeter standard in CPMC 17.75.031(B)(1). 

 

Comment:  In accordance with CPMC 17.75.031(B)(4)(d), the block perimeter standard may be 

modified due to traffic safety concerns.  The Private Retail Street access on Table Rock is 455-ft 

from the intersection of Table Rock and Biddle Road. Although the typical intersection spacing 

distance is 300-ft, the increased distance was deemed necessary to increase safety and traffic 

movement. Staff recommends this adjustment to the block perimeter be approved as proposed to 

minimize potential traffic safety concerns.  

 

FINDINGS:  

The proposed tentative plan has been reviewed against all applicable sections of 16.10, 16.24 and 17.75 of 

the Central Point Municipal Code and found to comply as conditioned in the Staff Report dated May 5, 

2020, the Applicant’s Findings (Attachment “B”) and  the Planning Department Supplemental Findings 

(Attachment “D”).   
 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: 

Prior to Final Plat approval, the applicant shall: 

1. Provide documentation from the Jackson County Surveyor’s Office that the name of the proposed 

subdivision is unique relative to other approved land divisions in Jackson County. 

 

2. Demonstrate compliance with all agency conditions of approval including the following: 

 

a. Satisfy conditions of approval in the Public Works Staff Report dated April 15, 2020 

(Attachment “E”). 

 

b. Satisfy conditions of approval in the Jackson County Roads and Engineering Staff 

Report, dated April 27, 2020 (Attachment “F”). 

 

c. Comply with conditions of approval provided by the Rogue Valley Sewer Services in a 

letter dated April 10, 2020 (Attachment “G”). 

ATTACHMENTS:  

Attachment “A” – Tentative Plan Map 

Attachment “B” – Application Narrative 

Attachment “C” – Traffic Impact Analysis, dated 02-24-2020 

Attachment “D” – Planning Department Supplemental Findings 

Attachment “E” – Parks & Public Works Department Staff Report, dated 04-15-2020 

Attachment “F” – Jackson County Roads and Engineering Department Staff Report, dated 04-27-2020 

Attachment “G” – Rogue Valley Sewer Services Staff Report, dated 04-10-2020 

Attachment “H” – Resolution No. 879. 

 

ACTION: 

Consideration of Resolution No. 879 for the Table Rock Crossing Subdivision Tentative Plan and 1) 

approve; 2) approve with revisions: or 3) deny the application. 

 



RECOMMENDATION:  

Approve the Table Rock Crossing Subdivision Tentative Plan per the Staff Report dated May 5, 2020.  



justing
Typewritten text
Attachment "A-1"



justing
Typewritten text
Attachment "A-2"



justing
Typewritten text
Attachment "A-3"



justing
Typewritten text
Attachment "B"



















































 

 

Table Rock Road  
Commercial Development 

Type III Procedure 
 

 
Traffic Impact Analysis 

 
  

February 28, 2020 
 
 
 

 
 
 

    Prepared By: 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Southern Oregon Transportation Engineering, LLC 

Transportation
Engineering, LLC

justing
Typewritten text
Attachment "C"



 

 

Table Rock Road  
Commercial Development 

Type III Procedure 
 

 
Traffic Impact Analysis 

 
 
 

February 28, 2020 
 
 
 
 

Prepared By: 
 

Southern Oregon Transportation Engineering, LLC 



 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

I.  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ....................................................................................................................... 5 
 
II. INTRODUCTION .................................................................................................................................... 6 
       Background .............................................................................................................................................. 6 
       Project Location ....................................................................................................................................... 6 
       Project Description ................................................................................................................................... 6 
 
III. EXISTING YEAR 2020 NO-BUILD CONDITIONS .......................................................................... 9 
       Site Condition ........................................................................................................................................... 9 
      Roadway Characteristics .......................................................................................................................... 9 
 Traffic Counts .......................................................................................................................................... 9 
       Intersection Capacity and Level of Service ............................................................................................ 11 
 Year 2020 No-Build Intersection Operations ......................................................................................... 12 
 Year 2020 No-Build 95th Percentile Queuing ......................................................................................... 12 
 Crash History.......................................................................................................................................... 14  
 Biddle Road Access Point ...................................................................................................................... 15  
 
IV. DESIGN YEAR 2025 NO-BUILD CONDITIONS ............................................................................. 16 
       Design Year 2025 No-Build Description ............................................................................................... 16 
 Design Year 2025 No-Build Intersection Operations ............................................................................. 16 
 Design Year 2025 No-Build 95th Percentile Queuing ............................................................................ 16 
 
V. SITE TRAFFIC ...................................................................................................................................... 19 
       Trip Generation ...................................................................................................................................... 19 
 Trip Distribution and Assignment .......................................................................................................... 19 
 Proposed Access Points .......................................................................................................................... 19 
 
VI.  DESIGN YEAR 2025 BUILD CONDITIONS ................................................................................... 21 
 Design Year 2025 Build Description ..................................................................................................... 21 
 Design Year 2025 Build Intersection Operations ................................................................................... 21 
 Design Year 2025 Build 95th Percentile Queuing .................................................................................. 21 
 Design Year 2025 Access Points ............................................................................................................ 23 
 Table Rock Road Sight Distance ............................................................................................................ 23 
 Design Year 2025 Build Turn Lane Criterion ........................................................................................ 23 
 
VII. FUTURE YEAR 2038 NO-BUILD AND BUILD CONDITIONS ................................................... 25 
 Future Year 2038 No-Build and Build Descriptions .............................................................................. 25 
 Future Year 2038 No-Build and Build Intersection Operations ............................................................. 25 
 Future Year 2038 No-Build and Build 95th Percentile Queuing ............................................................. 26 
 Future Year 2038 Build Turn Lane Criterion ......................................................................................... 27 
 Future Year 2038 Access Operations ..................................................................................................... 27 
  
VIII. CONCLUSIONS ................................................................................................................................ 30 

 

  



 

 

LIST OF TABLES 
 

Table 1: Roadway Classifications and Descriptions ........................................................................................ 9 
Table 2: HCM Level of Service Designations for Stop-Controlled Intersections ......................................... 11 
Table 3: HCM Level of Service Designations for Signalized Intersections .................................................. 11 
Table 4: Year 2020 No-Build Intersection Operations, PM Peak Hour ........................................................ 12 
Table 5: Year 2020 No-Build 95th Percentile Queue Lengths, PM Peak Hour .............................................. 12 
Table 6: Study Area Intersection Crash Rates, 2013-2017 ............................................................................ 14 
Table 7: Crash History by Type, 2013-2017 ................................................................................................. 14 
Table 8: Design Year 2025 No-Build Intersection Operations, PM Peak Hour ............................................ 16 
Table 9: Design Year 2025 No-Build 95th Percentile Queue Lengths, PM Peak Hour ................................. 17 
Table 10: Development Trip Generations ..................................................................................................... 19 
Table 11: Design Year 2025 Build Intersection Operations, PM Peak Hour ................................................ 21 
Table 12: Design Year 2025 Build 95th Percentile Queues, PM Peak Hour .................................................. 22 
Table 13: Future Year 2038 No-Build and Build Intersection Operations, PM Peak Hour .......................... 25 
Table 14: Future Year 2038 No-Build and Build 95th Percentile Queue Lengths, PM Peak Hour ................ 26 

 
FIGURES 

 
FIGURE 1:     Vicinity Map ............................................................................................................................ 7 
FIGURE 2:     Conceptual Site Plan ................................................................................................................ 8 
FIGURE 3:     Year 2020 No-Build Traffic Volumes, PM Peak Hour .......................................................... 10 
FIGURE 4:     Design Year 2025 No-Build Traffic Volumes, PM Peak Hour .............................................. 18 
FIGURE 5:     Development Trip Assignments, PM Peak Hour ................................................................... 20 
FIGURE 6:     Design Year 2025 Build Traffic Volumes, PM Peak Hour .................................................... 24 
FIGURE 7:     Future Year 2038 No-Build Traffic Volumes, PM Peak Hour ............................................... 28 
FIGURE 8:     Future Year 2038 Build Traffic Volumes, PM Peak Hour ..................................................... 29 
 

 
APPENDICES 

 
APPENDIX A:   TRAFFIC COUNT DATA, SEASONAL ADJUSTMENTS 
 
APPENDIX B:   CRASH DATA, ITE TRIP GENERATIONS 
 
APPENDIX C:   EXISTING YEAR 2020 NO-BUILD SYNCHRO AND SIMTRAFFIC OUTPUT 
 
APPENDIX D:   DESIGN YEAR 2025 NO-BUILD SYNCHRO AND SIMTRAFFIC OUTPUT 
 
APPENDIX E:   DESIGN YEAR 2025 BUILD SYNCHRO AND SIMTRAFFIC OUTPUT 
 
APPENDIX F:   FUTURE YEAR 2038 NO-BUILD SYNCHRO AND SIMTRAFFIC OUTPUT 
 
APPENDIX G:   FUTURE YEAR 2038 BUILD SYNCHRO AND SIMTRAFFIC OUTPUT 
 
APPENDIX H:   TURN LANE GRAPHS 
 
APPENDIX I:   AGENCY REQUIREMENTS



 

S.O. Transportation Engineering, LLC | February 28, 2020 | Table Rock Commercial Dev TIA | 5 

I. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 
Summary 
 
Southern Oregon Transportation Engineering, LLC prepared a traffic analysis for a proposed 
commercial development on the southwest corner of Table Rock Road and Biddle Road in Central 
Point, Oregon.  Phase 1 on the subject property has already been approved and includes a quick 
lube and automated carwash.  The remaining site is proposed to include 54,595 square feet (SF) of 
commercial development or shopping center uses.  Access to the site is proposed from Biddle Road 
and Table Rock Road.  North-south (N-S) and east-west (E-W) internal roads are also proposed to 
Biddle Road and Hamrick Road. 
 
The proposed 54,595 SF commercial development is estimated to be constructed by the year 2025 
and generate 229 primary trips to the transportation system during the p.m. peak hour.  Phase 1, 
which includes a quick lube and automated car wash, is included as additional background traffic in 
the existing year 2020 no-build, design year 2025 no-build, and future year 2038 no-build 
scenarios.  Five study area intersections were evaluated under existing year 2020, design year 2025, 
and future year 2038 conditions to determine what impacts the proposed 54,595 SF commercial 
development may have on the transportation system. 
 
Conclusions 
 
The findings of the traffic impact analysis conclude that the proposed commercial development can 
be approved with recommended improvements without creating adverse impacts to the 
transportation system.  Results of the analysis are as follows: 
 
1. All study area intersections operate acceptably under existing year 2020 and design year 2025 

no-build and build conditions during the p.m. peak hour.  The intersection of Hamrick Road / 
East Pine Street exceeds its performance standard under future year 2038 no-build and build 
conditions.  By the future year 2038, improvements are planned in the local area, including a 
Gebhard Road extension to East Pine Street with signalization.  When this occurs, traffic is 
expected to decrease specifically in the eastbound left and southbound right turn movements at 
Hamrick Road / East Pine Street.  It is our expectation that future mitigation for this 
intersection, with different improvement scenarios, will be determined when the City prepares a 
Transportation System Plan (TSP) Update in the next few years. 
 

2. Right turn lane criterion was evaluated at proposed access points on Biddle Road and Table 
Rock Road.  A right turn lane is not shown to be warranted on Table Rock Road under any 
analysis scenario.  A right turn lane is shown to be warranted on Biddle Road under year 2025 
build conditions.  If acquiring off site right of way to construct this turn lane proves to be 
difficult, this improvement can be delayed until the property to the west develops.  This is not 
considered a high-level safety concern.  

 
3. Queue lengths in the future year 2038 build scenario are shown to potentially impact the full 

movement access (referred to as the N-S Internal Road) with Biddle Road.  It is concluded that 
the full movement access may need to be restricted by this time.  This should be further 
discussed with Jackson County.   

 
The proposed 54,595 SF commercial development on the southwest corner of Biddle Road and 
Table Rock Road is shown to be in compliance with the Central Point Comprehensive Plan and 
Land Development Code.  Streets that serve the subject property will accommodate projected 
p.m. peak hour traffic volumes within acceptable levels of service with identified improvements.



 

S.O. Transportation Engineering, LLC | February 28, 2020 | Table Rock Commercial Dev TIA | 6 

II. INTRODUCTION 
 
Background  
 
Southern Oregon Transportation Engineering, LLC prepared a traffic analysis for a proposed 
commercial development on the southwest corner of Biddle Road and Table Rock Road in Central 
Point, Oregon.  A quick lube and automated car wash are pre-approved on the northwest corner of 
the property (as Phase 1 development) and expected to be constructed in 2020.  The remaining 
property is proposed to include 54,595 SF of commercial development.   
 
A limited traffic analysis is required by the City of Central Point in their land development code 
section 17.05.900 to address impacts for a type III procedural application.  Jackson County also 
requires an analysis because Table Rock Road and sections of Biddle Road within the study area 
are under County jurisdiction.  The scope of the analysis includes evaluating impacts to the 
surrounding transportation system under existing, development build year, and future year 
conditions.  The study area was determined by the City and County to include all access points to 
the site and the following intersections: 
 

1. Hamrick Road / East Pine Street 
2. Meadowbrook Drive / Biddle Road   
3. Table Rock Road / Biddle Road 
4. Hamrick Road / Table Rock Road 

 
Access to the site is proposed from Biddle Road and Table Rock Road.  North-south (N-S) and 
east-west (E-W) internal roads are also proposed to Biddle Road and Hamrick Road. 
 
Project Location 
 
The subject property is located on the southwest corner of Biddle Road and Table Rock Road on 
Township 37S Range 2W Section 01, tax lot 700 in Central Point, Oregon.  Refer to Figures 1 
and 2 for a vicinity map and site plan. 
 
Project Description  
 
The subject property is zoned C-4 for tourist and office-professional commercial developments.  It 
is currently vacant.  Phase 1 development, which included a quick lube and automated car wash, 
was approved in 2019 and is scheduled to be constructed in 2020.  For purposes of this analysis, 
Phase 1 development was considered as background traffic in year 2020 no-build, design year 2025 
no-build, and future year 2038 no-build scenarios.  Remaining site development includes 54,595 SF 
of commercial or shopping center uses.  The commercial development is estimated to generate 229 
primary trips to the transportation system during the p.m. peak hour.   

  







 

S.O. Transportation Engineering, LLC | February 28, 2020 | Table Rock Commercial Dev TIA | 9 

III. EXISTING YEAR 2020 NO-BUILD CONDITIONS 
 
Site Conditions  
 
The subject property is located on the southwest corner of Biddle Road and Table Rock Road on 
Township 37S Range 2W Section 01, tax lot 700 in Central Point, Oregon.  The site is currently 
vacant.  Access is proposed on Biddle Road and Table Rock Road. 
 
Roadway Characteristics  
 
The project study area includes intersections and driveways on Hamrick Road, Table Rock Road, 
Meadowbrook Drive, Biddle Road and East Pine Street.  A full movement access on Biddle Road 
(through a N-S Internal Road) and a right-in, right-out, left-in access on Table Rock Road is 
considered in the analysis for site circulation.  Study area intersections and driveways are 
analyzed in accordance with City of Central Point and Jackson County standards. 
 
Table 1 provides a summary of existing roadway classifications and descriptions in the study 
area. 
  

Table 1 - Roadway Classifications and Descriptions 

Roadway Jurisdiction Functional 
Classification Lanes Operational 

Standard
Posted Speed 
(MPH) 

East Pine Street City of Central Point Minor Arterial 5 LOS D 
V/C 0.95 35 

Biddle Road Jackson County Minor Arterial 5 V/C 0.95 35-45 

Hamrick Road City of Central Point Local 2 LOS D 30-40 

Meadowbrook Drive City of Central Point Local 2 LOS D 25 

Table Rock Road Jackson County Minor Arterial 2-5 V/C 0.95 45 

 
Traffic Counts 
 
Manual traffic counts (3-6pm) were collected in August of 2019 at study area intersections with 
the exception of Hamrick Road/Table Rock Road, which was counted in February of 2020.  Year 
2019 counts were seasonally adjusted and then increased by 2% to account for one year of 
growth, which is consistent with growth in the Exit 33 Interchange Area Management Plan 
(IAMP) and Costco study.  In comparing 2019 counts to more recent 2020 counts, it doesn’t 
appear that growth is occurring at that high of a rate but 2% is used to develop year 2020, design 
year 2025, and future year 2038 no-build conditions to be consistent with other analyses in the 
area.  Additional background growth included approved Phase 1 development trips.  Refer to 
Figure 3 for year 2020 no-build traffic volumes during the p.m. peak hour.  Counts are provided 
in Appendix A.  
 
 
 
 

  





 

S.O. Transportation Engineering, LLC | February 28, 2020 | Table Rock Commercial Dev TIA | 11 

Intersection Capacity and Level of Service 
 
Intersection capacity calculations were conducted utilizing the methodologies presented in the 
Highway Capacity Manual (HCM 6th Edition).  Capacity and level of service calculations for 
signalized and unsignalized intersections were prepared using “SYNCHRO” timing software.       
 
Level of service quantifies the degree of comfort afforded to drivers as they travel through an 
intersection or along a roadway section.  The level of service methodology was developed to 
quantify the quality of service of transportation facilities.  Level of service is based on total delay, 
defined as the total elapsed time from when a vehicle stops at the end of a queue until the vehicle 
departs from the stop line.  Level of service ranges from “A” to “F”, with “A” indicating the most 
desirable condition and “F” indicating an unsatisfactory condition.  The HCM LOS designations 
for stop-controlled intersections are provided in Table 2.  The HCM LOS designations for 
signalized intersections are provided in Table 3. 
 

Table 2 – HCM Level of Service Designations for Stop-Controlled Intersections 

Level of Service Delay Range 

A < 10

B >10 – 15

C >15 – 25

D >25 – 35

E >35 – 50

F > 50
 

Table 3 – HCM Level of Service Designations for Signalized Intersections 

Level of Service Delay Range 
 

A < 10

B >10 – 20

C >20 – 35

D >35 – 55

E >55 – 80

F > 80
 
Streets within the study area are under City of Central Point and Jackson County jurisdiction.  
The City of Central Point requires all study area intersections to operate at acceptable levels of 
service (LOS).  The minimum acceptable level of service for signalized intersections and 
unsignalized intersection movements is LOS “D”.  Jackson County’s operational standard 
considers a volume-to-capacity (V/C) ratio standard.  The acceptable performance standard for 
signalized and unsignalized intersections per the Jackson County Transportation System Plan is a 
v/c ratio no greater than 0.95 within the boundary of the Metropolitan Planning Organization 
(MPO) and 0.85 outside of the MPO boundary.  All intersections under Jackson County 
jurisdiction are within the MPO. Mitigation is, therefore, required at study area intersections 
operating below a LOS “D” if under City jurisdiction and a v/c ratio of 0.95 if under Jackson 
County jurisdiction. 
 



 

S.O. Transportation Engineering, LLC | February 28, 2020 | Table Rock Commercial Dev TIA | 12 

Year 2020 No-Build Intersection Operations  
 
Study area intersections were evaluated under existing year 2020 no-build conditions during the 
p.m. peak hour.  Results are summarized in Table 4.  
 

Table 4 - Year 2020 No-Build Intersection Operations, PM Peak Hour 

Intersection Performance 
Standard

Traffic 
Control Year 2020 No-Build 

Hamrick Road / East Pine Street LOS D, V/C 0.95 Signal C, 0.85 

Meadowbrook Drive / Biddle Road LOS D, V/C 0.95 TWSC C, 0.19 SBL 

Table Rock Road / Biddle Road V/C 0.95 Signal 0.63 

Hamrick Road / Table Rock Road V/C 0.95 TWSC 0.31 EBL 

N-S Internal Road / Biddle Road V/C 0.95 TWSC C, 0.06 NBL 

LOS = level of service, V/C = volume-to-capacity, TWSC = two-way stop controlled, EBL = eastbound left, SBL = southbound left, 
NBL = northbound left 
Note: Exceeded performance standards are shown in bold, italic 
 
Results of the analysis show all study area intersections operate acceptably (within performance 
standards) under existing year 2020 no-build conditions during the p.m. peak hour.  Refer to 
Appendix C for synchro output sheets.   
 
Year 2020 No-Build 95th Percentile Queuing 
 
Queuing is the stacking up of vehicles for a given lane movement, and it can have a significant 
effect on roadway safety and the overall operation of a transportation system.  Long queue 
lengths in through lanes can block access to turn lanes, driveways, and minor street approaches, 
as well as spill back into upstream intersections.  As a result of this, the estimation of queue 
lengths is an important aspect of the analysis process for determining how a transportation 
corridor operates. 
 
Queue lengths are reported as the average, maximum, or 95th percentile queue length.  The 95th 
percentile queue length is used for design purposes and is the queue length reported in this 
analysis.  Five simulations were run and averaged in SimTraffic to determine 95th percentile 
queue lengths.  Queues were evaluated at study area intersections under existing year 2020 no-
build conditions.  Queue lengths were rounded up to the nearest 25 feet (single vehicle length) 
and reported in Table 5 for the p.m. peak hour. 
  
Table 5 – Year 2020 No-Build 95th Percentile Queue Lengths, PM Peak Hour
Intersection / 
Movement 

Available Link  
Distance (Ft)

95th Percentile 
Queue Lengths

Exceeded or  
Blocked Roadway

East Pine Street / Hamrick Road 
Eastbound Left 
Eastbound Through/Right 
Westbound Left 
Westbound Through/Right 
Northbound Left1 
Northbound Through/Right1 
Southbound Left/Through 
Southbound Right 

 
400 
675 
300 
825 
450 
450 
350 
200

 
300 
175 
25 
250 
250 
75 
125 
225

 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 



 

S.O. Transportation Engineering, LLC | February 28, 2020 | Table Rock Commercial Dev TIA | 13 

 
Table 5 Continued – Year 2020 No-Build 95th Percentile Queue Lengths, PM Peak Hour 
Intersection / 
Movement 

Available Link  
Distance (Ft)

95th Percentile 
Queue Lengths

Exceeded or  
Blocked Roadway

Meadowbrook / Biddle Road 
Eastbound Left 
Eastbound Through/Right 
Westbound Left 
Westbound Through/Right 
Northbound Left 
Northbound Through/Right 
Southbound Left 
Southbound Through/Right 

 
200 
825 
385 
1100 
100 
425 
100 
375

 
50 
0 
25 
0 
25 
25 
50 
50

 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

Table Rock Road / Biddle Road 
Eastbound Left 
Eastbound Through/Right 
Eastbound Right 
Westbound Left 
Westbound Through/Right 
Westbound Right 
Northbound Left 
Northbound Through/Right 
Southbound Left 
Southbound Through/Right 

 
425 
525 
200 
150 
1400 
250 
425 
1025 
650 
650

 
225 
125 
50 
75 
200 
125 
125 
150 
150 
200

 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

Hamrick Road / Table Rock Road 
Eastbound Left 
Eastbound Right 
Northbound Left 
Northbound Through 
Southbound Through/Right 

 
225 
1000 
300 
400 
1025

 
100 
50 
50 
0 
25 

 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

N-S Internal Road / Biddle Road 
Eastbound Through/Right 
Westbound Left 
Northbound Left 
Northbound Right 

 
500 
100 
400 
100

 
0 
25 
50 
50 

 
- 
- 
- 
- 

Note: Exceeded performance standards are shown in bold, italic 
1. Planned improvements (south approach restriped with a left turn and through/right lane) considered in place 

 
Results of the queuing analysis show no study area intersection queue lengths are exceeded under 
existing year 2020 no-build conditions during the p.m. peak hour.  Queue lengths were field 
verified specifically at the signalized intersections of Hamrick Road / Pine Street and Table Rock 
Road / Biddle Road during the peak hour, and then adjusted in our model (with decreased 
saturation flow rates) until the output was consistent with observations.  The eastbound left and 
eastbound through queue lengths on Biddle Road at Table Rock Road were the only queues that 
reported lower 95th percentile queue lengths, but the reported max queue lengths were a good 
match to field conditions so those queues are reported in Table 5.  Refer to Appendix C for a full 
queuing and blocking report. 
 
  



 

S.O. Transportation Engineering, LLC | February 28, 2020 | Table Rock Commercial Dev TIA | 14 

Crash History 
 
Crash data for the most recent 5-year period was provided from ODOT’s crash analysis unit.  
Results were provided for the period of January 1, 2013 through December 31st, 2017.  Crash data 
was analyzed to identify crash patterns that could be attributable to geometric or operational 
deficiencies, or crash trends of a specific type that would indicate the need for further 
investigation at an intersection.  Study area intersection crash rates were also compared to 90th 
percentile rates using the HCM prediction model.  Tables 6 and 7 provide a summary of results.  
Crash data is provided in Appendix B. 
 

Table 6 - Study Area Intersection Crash Rates, 2013-2017 

Intersection 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Total 
Crashes ADT Crash 

Rate 
ODOT 
90th %

Hamrick / E Pine Street 5 2 1 7 5 20 26,650 0.411 0.860

Meadowbrook / Biddle 1 0 0 1 0 2 13,700 0.080 0.408

Table Rock / Biddle 3 3 4 7 4 21 25,800 0.446 0.860

Hamrick / Table Rock 0 0 0 0 0 0 12,200 0.000 0.293
 

Table 7 - Crash History by Type, 2013-2017 

Intersection Collision Type Severity 

 Rear- 
End 

Turning
/Angle Other Pedestrian/ 

Bicyclist
Non-

Injury Injury Fatal 

Hamrick / E Pine Street 6 13 1 0 10 10 0 

Meadowbrook / Biddle 0 1 1 0 1 1 0 

Table Rock / Biddle 18 2 1 0 7 14 0 

Hamrick / Table Rock 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 
The highest crash frequency occurred at the intersections of Hamrick Road / E Pine Street and 
Table Rock Road / Biddle Road.  At Hamrick Road / E Pine Street, 65% of collisions were 
turning or angle collisions, 30% were rear-end, and 5% were fixed-object.  At Table Rock Road / 
Biddle Road, 86% were rear-end collisions and 10% were turning or angle.  Of the rear-end 
collisions, 12 of 17 were northbound on Table Rock Road and five were southbound likely from 
congestion on Table Rock Road.  Turning and angle collisions were split from the north and 
south and involved permissive left turning vehicles.  Turning movement and angle collisions are 
common at signalized intersections with protected/permissive turning movements and at 
unsignalized intersections with center turn lanes.  Rear-end collisions are common under 
congested conditions.  More than half of the collisions resulted in injury at Table Rock Road / 
Biddle Road and 50% at Hamrick Road / East Pine Street, but none resulted in fatalities.  There 
was a more serious injury (INJA) at Table Rock Road / Biddle Road in September of 2015 
involving a driver northbound with a driver making a southbound left turn movement.  The 
southbound left turning driver failed to yield right-of-way.  None of the study area intersection 
crash rates reached the 90th percentile rate or were identified as a SPIS site.   
 
Widening improvements on Table Rock Road south of Biddle Road and intersection striping 
changes have occurred since the last year of available crash data was reported (2017).  
Congestion, specifically along Table Rock Road, has decreased as a result of widening 



 

S.O. Transportation Engineering, LLC | February 28, 2020 | Table Rock Commercial Dev TIA | 15 

improvements.  Costco traffic has also normalized in the area.  No further investigation is shown 
to be necessary.  
 
Biddle Road Access Point 
 
A full movement access on Biddle Road has been approved for Phase 1 development, which will 
eventually become a N-S Internal Road that connects to an existing E-W Internal Road from 
Hamrick Road to the subject property.  The existing E-W Internal Road currently ends just west 
of the subject property but will be extended to the N-S Internal Road as part of the proposed 
54,595 SF shopping center development.  The full-movement access on Biddle Road will be 
located approximately 525 feet west of Table Rock Road (measured from stop bar) and 485 feet 
east of Meadowbrook Drive.  The traffic movements that need to be monitored include the 
eastbound left, through, and right turn queue lengths on Biddle Road at Table Rock Road, and the 
westbound left turn queue length on Biddle Road at Meadowbrook Drive.  Queue lengths from 
these traffic movements could spill back and impact the Biddle Road access.  An aerial is shown 
below.  
 

 
 
The westbound left turn movement at Meadowbrook Drive is shown to have a 95th percentile 
queue length of 25 feet under existing conditions.  Similarly, the eastbound left, through, and 
right turn movements are shown to have 95th percentile queue lengths of 225 feet, 125 feet, and 
50 feet, respectively.  Queue lengths were field verified to make sure the model simulations were 
reporting accurate queue lengths.  Results show that no existing queue length from either 
direction is shown to reach or impact the proposed development access on Biddle Road under 
year 2020 no-build conditions (including Phase 1 development) during the p.m. peak hour. 
 
 
  

M
EA

D
O

W
BR

O
O

K
 D

R
 

TA
BL

E 
R

O
C

K
 R

D
 

New N-S 
Internal Road 

Phase 1 
site driveway 

WBL 
storage EBL 

storage 

WBL 
storage 

Center 
refuge 



 

S.O. Transportation Engineering, LLC | February 28, 2020 | Table Rock Commercial Dev TIA | 16 

IV. DESIGN YEAR 2025 NO-BUILD CONDITIONS 
 
Design Year 2025 No-Build Description 
 
Design year 2025 no-build conditions represent development build year conditions for a study 
area without consideration of proposed development trips.  This condition is evaluated to 
determine how a study area will be impacted by area background growth.  Background growth in 
the analysis, as previously stated, was kept consistent with growth used in the I-5 Exit 33 IAMP 
and Costco study for consistency.  Growth (~2% per year) was determined using model runs 
provided by ODOT’s Transportation Planning Analysis Unit (TPAU).  Additionally, trips from 
Phase 1 development (quick lube and automated car wash) were included.  Refer to Figure 4 for 
design year 2025 no-build traffic volumes during the p.m. peak hour. 
 
Design Year 2025 No-Build Intersection Operations  
 
Study area intersections were evaluated under design year 2025 no-build conditions during the 
p.m. peak hour.  Results are summarized in Table 8.  
 

Table 8 – Design Year 2025 No-Build Intersection Operations, PM Peak Hour 

Intersection Performance 
Standard

Traffic 
Control Year 2025 No-Build 

Hamrick Road / East Pine Street LOS D, V/C 0.95 Signal C, 0.90 

Meadowbrook Drive / Biddle Road LOS D, V/C 0.95 TWSC C, 0.22 SBL 

Table Rock Road / Biddle Road V/C 0.95 Signal 0.69 

Hamrick Road / Table Rock Road V/C 0.95 TWSC 0.37 EBL 

N-S Internal Road / Biddle Road V/C 0.95 TWSC C, 0.07 NBL 

LOS=Level of Service, V/C=Volume-to-Capacity, TWSC=Two-way stop controlled, EBL=eastbound left, SBL=southbound left, 
NBL=northbound left 
Note: Exceeded performance standards are shown in bold, italic 
 
Results of the analysis show all study area intersections continue to operate acceptably (within 
performance standards) under design year 2025 no-build conditions during the p.m. peak hour.  
Refer to Appendix D for synchro output sheets.   
 
Design Year 2025 No-Build 95th Percentile Queuing 
 
Five simulations were run and averaged in SimTraffic to determine 95th percentile queue lengths 
at study area intersections under design year 2025 no-build conditions.  Queue lengths were 
rounded up to the nearest 25 feet (single vehicle length) and reported in Table 9 for the p.m. peak 
hour. 
  



 

S.O. Transportation Engineering, LLC | February 28, 2020 | Table Rock Commercial Dev TIA | 17 

 
Table 9 – Design Year 2025 No-Build 95th Percentile Queue Lengths, PM Peak Hour 
Intersection / 
Movement 

Available Link  
Distance (Ft) 

95th Percentile 
Queue Lengths 

Exceeded or  
Blocked Roadway 

East Pine Street / Hamrick Road 
Eastbound Left 
Eastbound Through/Right 
Westbound Left 
Westbound Through/Right 
Northbound Left1 
Northbound Through/Right1 
Southbound Left/Through 
Southbound Right 

 
400 
675 
300 
825 
450 
450 
350 
200

 
450 
225 
25 
275 
275 
75 
125 
275

 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

Meadowbrook / Biddle Road 
Eastbound Left 
Eastbound Through/Right 
Westbound Left 
Westbound Through/Right 
Northbound Left 
Northbound Through/Right 
Southbound Left 
Southbound Through/Right 

 
200 
825 
385 
1100 
100 
425 
100 
375

 
50 
0 
25 
0 
25 
25 
50 
50 

 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

Table Rock Road / Biddle Road 
Eastbound Left 
Eastbound Through/Right 
Eastbound Right 
Westbound Left 
Westbound Through/Right 
Westbound Right 
Northbound Left 
Northbound Through/Right 
Southbound Left 
Southbound Through/Right 

 
425 
525 
200 
150 
1400 
250 
425 
1025 
650 
650

 
275 
150 
50 
75 
200 
125 
125 
150 
175 
225 

 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

Hamrick Road / Table Rock Road 
Eastbound Left 
Eastbound Right 
Northbound Left 
Northbound Through 
Southbound Through/Right 

 
225 
1000 
300 
400 
1025

 
100 
50 
50 
0 
25

 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

N-S Internal Road / Biddle Road 
Eastbound Through/Right 
Westbound Left 
Northbound Left 
Northbound Right 

 
500 
100 
400 
100

 
0 
25 
50 
50 

 
- 
- 
- 
- 

Note: Exceeded performance standards are shown in bold, italic 
1. Planned improvements (south approach restriped with a left turn and through/right lane) considered in place 

 
Results of the queuing analysis show no study area intersection queue length is exceeded under 
design year 2025 no-build conditions during the p.m. peak hour.  The eastbound left turn queue 
length on Biddle Road at Table Rock Road increases from 225 feet to 275 feet, but this is still 
well below the 425 feet of available storage length.  The westbound left turn queue length on 
Biddle Road at Meadowbrook Drive stays the same (25 feet).  The westbound left turn queue 
length on Biddle Road at the N-S Internal Road also stays the same (25 feet).  The N-S Internal 
Road, therefore, continues to operate acceptably as a full movement access on Biddle Road under 
design year 2025 no-build conditions during the p.m. peak hour.  Refer to Appendix D for a full 
queuing and blocking report.   
  





 

S.O. Transportation Engineering, LLC | February 28, 2020 | Table Rock Commercial Dev TIA | 19 

V. SITE  TRAFFIC 
 
Trip Generation 
 
Trip generation calculations for the proposed 54,595 SF commercial development were prepared 
utilizing the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) Trip Generation, 10th Edition.  ITE rates 
were used for land use code 820 – Shopping Center.  Pass-by trips were considered in accordance 
with ITE recommended practices.  No internal trip reductions were taken.  Table 10 provides a 
summary of trip generations.  ITE graphs are provided in Appendix B. 
 

Table 10 – Development Trip Generations 

Land Use Unit Size PM Peak 
Rate

PM 
Trips PM Peak Hour 

    Total % In In % Out Out 

820 – Shopping Center  1000 SF 54.595 Fitted 347 0.48 167 0.52 180 

34% Pass-by    (118)  (59)  (59) 

Total Primary Trips    229  108  121 
SF = Square Feet 
 
Trip Distribution and Assignment 
 
Development trips were distributed in accordance with existing traffic volumes within the study 
area and engineering judgement.  Roadway volumes were compared in the local project vicinity 
to estimate the percentage of trips going to and coming from Hamrick Road, East Pine Street, 
Biddle Road, Meadowbrook Drive, and Table Rock Road.  This resulted in 15% to/from the north 
on Hamrick Road, 30% to from the west on East Pine Street, 5% to/from Meadowbrook Drive, 
15% to/from the north on Table Rock Road, 10% to/from the south on Table Rock Road, and 
20% to/from the east on Biddle Road.  Refer to Figure 5 for shopping center development trip 
distributions and assignments during the p.m. peak hour. 
 
Proposed Access Points 
 
Under design year 2025 no-build and 
build conditions, a full movement access 
via a N-S Internal Road exists at Biddle 
Road.  A second access is proposed on 
Table Rock Road under design year 2025 
build conditions approximately 450 feet 
south of Biddle Road and 600 feet north 
of Hamrick Road.  This access is 
proposed as a right-in, right-out, left-in 
access.  
  

TA
BL

E 
R

O
C

K
 R

D
 

N-S 
Internal 
Road 

Phase 1 
site driveway 450’ 

Second site 
driveway 

E-W Internal Road 





 

S.O. Transportation Engineering, LLC | February 28, 2020 | Table Rock Commercial Dev TIA | 21 

VI. DESIGN YEAR 2025 BUILD CONDITIONS 
 
Design Year 2025 Build Description 
 
Build conditions represent no-build conditions for a study area with the addition of proposed 
development trips considered.  Build conditions are compared to no-build conditions to determine 
what impacts and/or mitigation measures will result from proposed development.  Build 
conditions in year 2025 are for a 54,595 SF commercial/shopping center development.  
 
Design Year 2025 Build Intersection Operations 
 
Design Year 2025 build traffic volumes were evaluated at study area intersections during the p.m. 
peak hour to compare impacts.  Results are summarized in Table 11. 
 

Table 11 – Design Year 2025 Build Intersection Operations, PM Peak Hour 

Intersection Performance 
Standard 

Traffic 
Control  Year 2025 Build 

Hamrick Road / East Pine Street LOS D, V/C 0.95 Signal C, 0.94 

Meadowbrook Drive / Biddle Road LOS D, V/C 0.95 TWSC C, 0.28 SBL 

Table Rock Road / Biddle Road V/C 0.95 Signal 0.72 

Hamrick Road / Table Rock Road V/C 0.95 TWSC 0.38 EBL 

N-S Internal Road / Biddle Road V/C 0.95 TWSC C, 0.20 NBL 

Site Access / Table Rock Road V/C 0.95 TWSC 0.06 EBR 

LOS=Level of Service, V/C=Volume-to-Capacity, TWSC=Two-way stop controlled, EBL=eastbound left, EBR=eastbound right, 
SBL=southbound left, NBL=northbound left 
Note: Exceeded performance standards are shown in bold, italic 
 
Results of the analysis show all study area intersections continue to operate acceptably (within 
performance standards) under design year 2025 build conditions during the p.m. peak hour.  
Small changes occur at the signalized intersections of Hamrick Road/ E. Pine Street and Table 
Rock Road / Biddle Road, but both continue to meet their performance standard.  The new site 
driveway on Table Rock Road is shown to have minor delay with the critical movement being the 
eastbound right turn movement.  The critical movement (northbound left) v/c ratio at the N-S 
Internal Road intersection with Biddle Road increases from a v/c ratio of 0.07 (LOS C) to 0.20 
(LOS C) as a result of proposed shopping center development, but continues to meet the County 
performance standard.  Synchro output sheets are provided in Appendix E for further reference.   
 
Design Year 2025 Build 95th Percentile Queuing 
 
Five simulations were run and averaged in SimTraffic to determine 95th percentile queue lengths 
at study area intersections under design year 2025 build conditions.  Queue lengths were rounded 
up to the nearest 25 feet (single vehicle length) and reported in Table 12 for the p.m. peak hour. 
  
  



 

S.O. Transportation Engineering, LLC | February 28, 2020 | Table Rock Commercial Dev TIA | 22 

 
Table 12 – Design Year 2025 Build 95th Percentile Queue Lengths, PM Peak Hour 
Intersection / 
Movement 

Available Link  
Distance (Ft)

95th Percentile 
Queue Lengths

Exceeded or  
Blocked Roadway

East Pine Street / Hamrick Road 
Eastbound Left 
Eastbound Through/Right 
Westbound Left 
Westbound Through/Right 
Northbound Left1 
Northbound Through/Right1 
Southbound Left/Through 
Southbound Right 

 
400 
675 
300 
825 
450 
450 
350 
200

 
450 
250 
25 
300 
350 
75 
175 
300 

 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

Meadowbrook / Biddle Road 
Eastbound Left 
Eastbound Through/Right 
Westbound Left 
Westbound Through/Right 
Northbound Left 
Northbound Through/Right 
Southbound Left 
Southbound Through/Right 

 
200 
825 
385 
1100 
100 
425 
100 
375

 
50 
0 
25 
0 
25 
25 
50 
50 

 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

Table Rock Road / Biddle Road 
Eastbound Left 
Eastbound Through/Right 
Eastbound Right 
Westbound Left 
Westbound Through/Right 
Westbound Right 
Northbound Left 
Northbound Through/Right 
Southbound Left 
Southbound Through/Right 

 
425 
525 
200 
150 
1400 
250 
425 
1025 
650 
650

 
275 
175 
50 
75 
225 
125 
150 
150 
175 
250 

 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

Hamrick Road / Table Rock Road 
Eastbound Left 
Eastbound Right 
Northbound Left 
Northbound Through 
Southbound Through/Right 

 
225 
1000 
300 
400 
600

 
100 
50 
50 
0 
25

 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

N-S Internal Road / Biddle Road 
Eastbound Through/Right 
Westbound Left 
Northbound Left 
Northbound Right 

 
500 
100 
400 
100

 
25 
50 
75 
75

 
- 
- 
- 
- 

Site Access / Table Rock Road 
Eastbound Right 
Northbound Left 
Southbound Through/Right 

 
200 
450 
450

 
50 
25 
0

 
- 
- 
- 

Note: Exceeded performance standards are shown in bold, italic 
1. Planned improvements (south approach restriped with a left turn and through/right lane) considered in place 

 
Results of the queuing analysis show small increases in queue lengths at study area intersections 
under design year 2025 build conditions during the p.m. peak hour.  The northbound left turn 
queue length on Hamrick Road at East Pine Street increases to 350 feet from additional traffic 
using the E-W Internal Road when leaving the commercial development.  Similarly, the 
northbound left and right turn queue lengths on the N-S Internal Road at Biddle Road increase as 



 

S.O. Transportation Engineering, LLC | February 28, 2020 | Table Rock Commercial Dev TIA | 23 

a result of additional traffic from the commercial development, but no significant changes are 
shown to occur.  Refer to Appendix E for a full queuing and blocking report. 
 
Design Year 2025 Access Points 
 
Site access points under design year 2025 build conditions are shown to operate acceptably with 
additional traffic from shopping center development.  The full movement access on Biddle Road, 
which becomes the N-S Internal Road connection to the E-W Internal Road from Hamrick Road, 
experiences a small increase in delay (northbound left turn movement) of 17 seconds to 20 
seconds with a v/c ratio increase of 0.07 to 0.20, but these are considered minor changes.  The 
new site access on Table Rock Road is shown to have an average delay of 11 seconds in the 
eastbound right turn movement and 9 seconds in the northbound left turn movement.  Our 
simulations and intersection operations output show both access points on Biddle Road and Table 
Rock Road operating acceptably with build out of the shopping center in year 2025.  Nothing 
indicates a need to restrict the full movement access on Biddle Road as a result of shopping 
center traffic under this analysis scenario.  If, at any time, queue lengths on Biddle Road increase 
to a point that having a full movement access between Table Rock Road and Meadowbrook Drive 
becomes problematic, however, the County has the right to restrict access to the N-S Internal 
Road.  Until that occurs, there’s a benefit to having more access options for drivers because it 
preserves capacity at surrounding intersections.  
 
Table Rock Road Sight Distance 
 
The new site access on Table Rock Road is proposed as a right-in, right-out, left-in access.  The 
movements that need visual clearance include the eastbound right and northbound left turn 
movements.  Table Rock Road is straight and flat in this section.  Sight distance is unrestricted 
for both movements and shown to be adequate.  
 
Design Year 2025 Build Turn Lane Criterion 
 
Right Turn Lane 
Right turn lane criterion was evaluated on Biddle Road at the N-S Internal Road and on Table 
Rock Road at the proposed site driveway during the p.m. peak hour to determine whether right 
turn deceleration lanes are necessary under design year 2025 build conditions for the eastbound 
and southbound movements, respectively.  Results of the analysis show criterion is met on Biddle 
Road and, therefore, warrants a deceleration lane.  This may be determined to be difficult, 
however, because the street frontage needed for the turn lane is off site.  From our perspective, 
the right turn lane is not a high safety concern because there are two eastbound travel lanes on 
Biddle Road, which reduces the potential for rear-end collisions.  If the off-site frontage is not 
able to be obtained for a right turn lane and Jackson County cannot condemn it, then construction 
of a right turn lane can be delayed until the property to the west develops without creating 
significant safety concerns.  Criterion was not shown to be met on Table Rock Road.  Refer to 
Appendix H for right turn lane graphs.  





 

S.O. Transportation Engineering, LLC | February 28, 2020 | Table Rock Commercial Dev TIA | 25 

VII. FUTURE YEAR 2038 NO-BUILD & BUILD CONDITIONS 
 
Future Year 2038 No-Build and Build Description 
 
Future year 2038 no-build conditions represent development build year conditions without 
consideration of build development trips.  Future year 2038 build conditions represent no-build 
conditions with the addition of development trips considered.  Growth between design year 2025 
and future year 2038 was developed using a 2% annual growth, as stated previously in this report.  
Study area intersections were then balanced.  Refer to Figures 7 and 8 for future year 2038 no-
build and build traffic volumes during the p.m. peak hour. 
 
Future Year 2038 No-Build and Build Intersection Operations  
 
Study area intersections were evaluated under future year 2038 no-build and build conditions 
during the p.m. peak hour.  Results are summarized in Table 13.  
 

Table 13 – Future Year 2038 No-Build and Build Intersection Operations, PM Peak Hour 

Intersection Performance 
Standard

Traffic 
Control 

Future Year 
2038 No-Build

Future Year 
2038 Build  

Hamrick Road / East Pine Street LOS D, V/C 0.95 Signal D, 1.12 E, 1.14 

Meadowbrook Drive / Biddle Road LOS D, V/C 0.95 TWSC C, 0.38 SBL C, 0.53 SBL 

Table Rock Road / Biddle Road V/C 0.95 Signal 0.90 0.93 

Hamrick Road / Table Rock Road V/C 0.95 TWSC 0.61 EBL 0.64 EBL 

N-S Internal Road / Biddle Road V/C 0.95 TWSC C, 0.09 NBL D, 0.25 NBL 

Site Access / Table Rock Road V/C 0.95 TWSC NA 0.07 EBR 

LOS=Level of Service, V/C=Volume-to-Capacity, TWSC=Two-way stop controlled, EBL=eastbound left, EBR=eastbound right, 
SBL=southbound left, NBL=northbound left 
Note: Exceeded performance standards are shown in bold, italic 
 
Results of the analysis show the signalized intersection of Hamrick Road / East Pine Street 
exceeding its performance standard under future year 2038 no-build and build conditions.  All 
other study area intersections are shown to operate acceptably with and without proposed 
shopping center development trips.  By the future year 2038, planned improvements in the local 
area, including a Gebhard Road connection to East Pine Street, are expected to re-route traffic at 
the intersection of Hamrick Road / East Pine Street.  Re-routing is specifically expected to 
decrease traffic in the eastbound left and southbound right turn movements.  Once these 
improvements are in place, it can be determined whether additional mitigation is necessary at 
Hamrick Road / East Pine Street.  If the Gebhard Road connection does not occur by the future 
year 2038, then required mitigation will likely include a second eastbound left turn lane on East 
Pine Street and possibly an additional westbound receiving lane for the southbound right turn 
movement on Hamrick Road.  These improvements have been previously discussed in the Exit 33 
IAMP and other studies.  It is our conclusion that specific mitigation for this intersection, if 
shown to be necessary, will likely be determined when the City prepares a Transportation System 
Plan (TSP) Update in the next few years.  Refer to Appendices F and G for synchro output sheets.



 

S.O. Transportation Engineering, LLC | February 28, 2020 | Table Rock Commercial Dev TIA | 26 

Future Year 2038 No-Build and Build 95th Percentile Queuing 
 
Five simulations were run and averaged in SimTraffic to determine 95th percentile queue lengths 
at study area intersections under future year 2038 no-build and build conditions.  Queue lengths 
were rounded up to the nearest 25 feet (single vehicle length) and reported in Table 14 for the 
p.m. peak hour. 
  
Table 14 – Future Year 2038 No-Build and Build 95th Percentile Queue Lengths, PM Peak Hour

Intersection / 
Movement 

Available Link  
Distance (Ft) 

95th Percentile 
Queue Lengths 
No-Build

95th Percentile 
Queue Lengths 
Build

Exceeded or  
Blocked Roadway

East Pine Street / Hamrick Road 
Eastbound Left 
Eastbound Through/Right 
Westbound Left 
Westbound Through/Right 
Northbound Left1 
Northbound Through/Right1 
Southbound Left/Through 
Southbound Right 

 
400 
675 
300 
825 
450 
450 
350 
200

 
600 
275 
100 
525 
375 
100 
250 
325

 
625 
300 
100 
625 
500 
175 
275 
325 

 
Bank Driveway 
- 
- 
- 
E-W Internal Road 
- 
- 
Right Turn Storage

Meadowbrook / Biddle Road 
Eastbound Left 
Eastbound Through/Right 
Westbound Left 
Westbound Through/Right 
Northbound Left 
Northbound Through/Right 
Southbound Left 
Southbound Through/Right 

 
200 
825 
385 
1100 
100 
425 
100 
375

 
75 
0 
25 
0 
25 
25 
50 
50

 
75 
0 
25 
0 
25 
25 
50 
50 

 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

Table Rock Road / Biddle Road 
Eastbound Left 
Eastbound Through/Right 
Eastbound Right 
Westbound Left 
Westbound Through/Right 
Westbound Right 
Northbound Left 
Northbound Through/Right 
Southbound Left 
Southbound Through/Right 

 
425 
525 
200 
150 
1400 
250 
425 
1025 
650 
650

 
275 
200 
75 
75 
300 
225 
200 
225 
250 
350

 
325 
225 
75 
100 
300 
250 
250 
225 
250 
425

 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

Hamrick Road / Table Rock Road 
Eastbound Left 
Eastbound Right 
Northbound Left 
Northbound Through 
Southbound Through/Right 

 
225 
1000 
300 
400 
1025/600

 
200 
200 
50 
0 
25

 
225 
175 
50 
0 
25

 
- 
- 
- 
- 
- 

N-S Internal Road / Biddle Road 
Eastbound Through/Right 
Westbound Left 
Northbound Left 
Northbound Right 

 
500 
100 
400 
100

 
25 
50 
50 
50

 
25 
50 
75 
75

 
- 
- 
- 
- 

Site Access / Table Rock Road 
Eastbound Right 
Northbound Left 
Southbound Through/Right 

 
200 
450 
450

 
- 
- 
-

 
50 
25 
0

 
- 
- 
- 

Note: Exceeded performance standards are shown in bold, italic 
1. Planned improvements (south approach restriped with a left turn and through/right lane) considered in place 



 

S.O. Transportation Engineering, LLC | February 28, 2020 | Table Rock Commercial Dev TIA | 27 

 
Results of the queuing analysis show three traffic movements exceed their available storage 
lengths at the intersection of Hamrick Road / East Pine Street under future year 2038 no-build and 
build conditions.  These include the southbound right turn, eastbound left turn, and northbound 
left turn movements.  No other traffic movements at study area intersections are shown to exceed 
their storage length.   Refer to Appendices F and G for a full queuing and blocking report. 
 
Future Year 2038 Build Turn Lane Criterion 
 
Right Turn Lane 
Right turn lane criterion was evaluated on Biddle Road and shown to be met under design year 
2025 build conditions, so this was not re-evaluated under future conditions.  Turn lane criterion 
was evaluated on Table Rock Road at the proposed site access under future year 2038 build 
conditions.  Results of the analysis show criterion is not met on Table Rock Road as a result of 
shopping center development and a turn lane is not warranted.  Refer to Appendix H for right turn 
lane graphs. 
 
Future Year 2038 Access Operations 
 
Under future year 2038 no-build and build conditions, a full movement access on Biddle Road 
and a right-in, right-out, left-in access on Table Rock Road was considered.  Both access points 
were evaluated and shown to operate acceptably (within City of Central Point and Jackson 
County performance standards).  The eastbound left turn queue on Biddle Road at Table Rock 
Road is shown to increase from 275 feet to 325 feet under build conditions.  The available storage 
distance, assuming 100 feet of storage for the westbound left turn movement on Biddle Road at 
the N-S Internal Road, is approximately 425 feet.  This leaves approximately 100 feet of margin 
before the back to back queue lengths overlap within the available storage length.  Based on this, 
it is our conclusion that the N-S Internal Road access on Biddle Road may need to be restricted 
under future year 2038 build conditions.  It is our recommendation to discuss this further with 
Jackson County.  
 
The right-in, right-out, left-in site access on Table Rock Road is located over 400 feet south of 
Biddle Road.  The northbound left turn queue length on Table Rock Road at Biddle Road is the 
queue that could potentially impact the northbound left-in movement at this access.  The 
northbound left turn queue length at Table Rock Road / Biddle Road is reported to increase from 
200 feet to 250 feet under future year 2038 build conditions, which is well below the allowable 
storage length.  Based on this, it is our conclusion that the proposed site access can remain as 
evaluated without creating any adverse impacts to the transportation system. 
 
  







 

S.O. Transportation Engineering, LLC | February 28, 2020 | Table Rock Commercial Dev TIA | 30 

VIII. CONCLUSIONS  
 
Conclusions 
 
The findings of the traffic impact analysis conclude that the proposed commercial development can 
be approved with recommended improvements without creating adverse impacts to the 
transportation system.  Results of the analysis are as follows: 
 
1. All study area intersections operate acceptably under existing year 2020 and design year 2025 

no-build and build conditions during the p.m. peak hour.  The intersection of Hamrick Road / 
East Pine Street exceeds its performance standard under future year 2038 no-build and build 
conditions.  By the future year 2038, improvements are planned in the local area, including a 
Gebhard Road extension to East Pine Street with signalization.  When this occurs, traffic is 
expected to decrease specifically in the eastbound left and southbound right turn movements at 
Hamrick Road / East Pine Street.  It is our expectation that future mitigation for this 
intersection, with different improvement scenarios, will be determined when the City prepares a 
Transportation System Plan (TSP) Update in the next few years. 
 

2. Right turn lane criterion was evaluated at proposed access points on Biddle Road and Table 
Rock Road.  A right turn lane is not shown to be warranted on Table Rock Road under any 
analysis scenario.  A right turn lane is shown to be warranted on Biddle Road under year 2025 
build conditions.  If acquiring off site right of way to construct this turn lane proves to be 
difficult, this improvement can be delayed until the property to the west develops.  This is not 
considered a high-level safety concern.  

 
3. Queue lengths in the future year 2038 build scenario are shown to potentially impact the full 

movement access (referred to as the N-S Internal Road) with Biddle Road.  It is concluded that 
the full movement access may need to be restricted by this time.  This should be further 
discussed with Jackson County.   

 
The proposed 54,595 SF commercial development on the southwest corner of Biddle Road and 
Table Rock Road is shown to be in compliance with the Central Point Comprehensive Plan and 
Land Development Code.  Streets that serve the subject property will accommodate projected 
p.m. peak hour traffic volumes within acceptable levels of service with identified improvements. 
 



Table Rock Road 
Commercial Development 

Type III Procedure 
 

 
APPENDICES A-I 

 
 
 

February 28, 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared By: 
 

Southern Oregon Transportation Engineering, LLC 
  

justing
Typewritten text
Due to the length of the document of the document Appendices A-I have been removed and are available upon request.



 

 

                                  Southern Oregon
                    Transportation Engineering, LLC 

 
                                    Medford, Oregon 97504 
                           Phone 541.608.9923 Fax 541.535.6873 
                               Email: Kim.parducci@gmail.com 
 



Page 1 of 3 Findings & Conclusions of Law File No.: SUB-20001 

 

 

PLANNING DEPARTMENT SUPPLEMENTAL FINDINGS OF FACT 

AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

File No.: SUB-20001 

 

 

Before the City of Central Point Planning Commission 

Consideration of a Tentative Plan for the Table Rock Crossing Subdivision   

  

 

Applicant:      )   Findings of Fact  

South Salem, LLC     )              and 

PO Box 4460      ) Conclusion of Law 

Medford OR 97501      ) 

 

 

 

PART 1 

INTRODUCTION 

 

The applicant submitted a tentative plan application (Type III) for the Table Rock Crossing Subdivision to 

subdivide 7.01 acres into eight (8) commercial lots (“Application”).  The property is located within the 

Tourist and Office Professional (C-4) zoning district. 

 

A subdivision tentative plan is reviewed as a Type III application. Type III applications are reviewed in 

accordance with procedures provided in Section 17.05.400, which provides the basis for decisions upon 

standards and criteria in the development code and the comprehensive plan, when appropriate.   

 

The standards and criteria for the proposal are set forth in CPMC Title 16, Subdivisions, and Chapter 

17.75, Development and Design Standards. The following findings address each of the standards and 

criteria as applies to the subdivision tentative plan. 

 

PART 2 

SUBDIVISIONS 

 

Title 16 of the Central Point Municipal Code (CPMC) establishes standards and criteria for land 

division applications including tentative plans and final plats. The sections of CPMC 16 applicable to 

the Application are:   

 

Chapter 16.10 - Tentative Plans.   

 

This section of code provides design standards and principles of acceptability, the information 

required on a tentative plan map and other supplementary material that may be required for review 

of the application. 

 

Finding CPMC 16.10: The tentative plan, as represented by Attachment “A-1” of the Planning 

Department Staff Report dated April 28, 2020, has been reviewed for compliance with the 

justing
Typewritten text
Attachment "D"



Page 2 of 3 Findings & Conclusions of Law File No.: SUB-20001 

requirements of Chapter 16.10 and found to contain all the necessary information. As a condition 

of approval, the applicant is required to submit a subdivision plat name from the Jackson County 

Surveyor. 

 

Conclusion CPMC 16.10: Complies as conditioned. 

 

CPMC 16.20.020 Streets – Generally 

 

Streets created by subdivisions and partitions shall be designed and constructed in conformance 

with the requirements of the city’s comprehensive plan, this code, the city’s public works 

standards, and all conditions established by the city. 

 

Finding CPMC 16.20: Access to the proposed subdivision will be provided by a new Retail 

Street, which provides access to Table Rock Road and Biddle Road with a connection to Hamrick 

Road through existing developments to the west. The Retail Streets are designed to minimum 

construction standards, provides landscape rows and sidewalk connections throughout the site. 

Internal circulation will be provided by access easements  

 

Conclusion CPMC 16.20: As evidenced by the Tentative Plan and Parks & Public Works Staff 

Report referenced above, the proposed retail streets are designed and planned for construction 

consistent with City standards.    

 

Chapter 16.24, Blocks and Lots—Design Standards 

 

The lengths, widths and shapes of blocks shall be designed with due regard to providing adequate 

building sites suitable to the special needs of the type and use contemplated, needs for convenient 

access, circulation, control and safety of street traffic and limitations and opportunities of topography. 

 

Finding CPMC 16.24: While the proposed perimeter block length of 2,152-feet exceeds the maximum 

perimeter block length of 2,000 feet, the standards may be modified due to traffic safety concerns. The 

intersection of the private street along Table Rock Road was increased from the 300-foot minimum to 

455-feet to increase safety and traffic movement along Table Rock Road, and accounts for the 

increase in perimeter block length. 

 

Conclusion CPMC 16.24: Complies. 

 

PART 3 

ZONING ORDINANCE 

 

The purpose of Title 17 of the CPMC is to encourage the most appropriate use of land, promote orderly 

growth of the city, and promote public health, safety, convenience and general welfare. The sections of 

CPMC 17 applicable to the application are:  

 

Chapter 17.05, Applications and Types of Review Procedures 

  

This Chapter establishes standard decision-making procedures that enable the city, the applicant, and 

the public to review applications and participate in the local decision making process.  There are four 



Page 3 of 3 Findings & Conclusions of Law File No.: SUB-20001 

(4) types of review procedures, Type I, II, II, and IV that are applied to land use and development 

applications in Table 17.05.100.1.  It also establishes when a Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) is 

required.   

 

Finding CPMC 17.05: As identified in Table I, Section 17.05.100.1 a subdivision tentative plan is 

reviewed using Type III procedures. The application has been noticed and processed in accordance 

with the Type III review procedures per Section 17.05.400. A TIA was submitted by Southern Oregon 

Transportation for the proposed development in accordance Section 17.05.900. 

 

Conclusion CPMC 17.05: Complies. 

 

Chapter 17.75, Design and Development Standards 

 

CPMC 17.75.031 General Connectivity, Circulation and Access Standards 

 

The purpose of this section is to assure that the connectivity and transportation policies of the city’s 

Transportation System Plan are implemented. In achieving the objective of maintaining and enhancing 

the city’s small town environment it is the city’s goal to base its development pattern on a general 

circulation grid using a walkable block system. Blocks may be comprised of public/private street 

right-of-way, or accessways. 

 

Finding CPMC 17.75.031: The proposed development will use private retail streets to provide 

connections to the public streets. The private streets will also permit the development to meet the 

perimeter block length standards and provide connections from Hamrick Road through existing 

developments to the west 

 

While the proposed perimeter block length of 2,152-feet exceeds the maximum perimeter block length 

of 2,000 feet, the standards may be modified due to traffic safety concerns. The intersection of the 

private street along Table Rock Road was increased from the 300-foot minimum to 455-feet to 

increase safety and traffic movement along Table Rock Road, and accounts for the increase in 

perimeter block length. 

 

The Retail Streets are designed to minimum construction standards, provide landscape rows and 

sidewalk connections throughout the site. Internal circulation for vehicles and pedestrians will be 

provided by access easements 

 

Conclusion CPMC 17.75.031: Complies. 

 

PART 4 

SUMMARY CONCLUSION 

 

As evidenced in Planning Department Supplemental Findings, the proposed tentative plan application for 

the Table Rock Crossing Subdivision is, as conditioned in the Staff Report dated May 5, 2020, in 

compliance with the applicable criteria set forth in Title 16 and Title 17 of the Central Point Municipal 

Code.   



 

 

 

 

 

PUBLIC WORKS STAFF REPORT 
 
April 15, 2020 

 

AGENDA ITEM:   

SUB- 20001 –8 lot commercial subdivision   

 

Traffic: 

 

The applicant is proposing an 8 lot commercial subdivision.  The City uses the Institute of 

Transportation Engineers (ITE) Volume 10 for scoping Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA).  The 

threshold is 25 PHT, on a particular intersection, or can be required as part of a conditional use 

permit.  A TIA was completed by Southern Oregon Transportation for this use.  Access to the 

site is controlled by Jackson County Roads on both Table Rock Road and Biddle Avenue.  They 

are allowing right in and out on and left in on both movements.  The TIA also points out that at a 

future year more improvements are needed at Hamrick and Biddle/Pine.    The City is working 

on a plan to expand the intersection as well as future north bound movements via a Gebhard 

Road project.  Both are scheduled to be completed during the planning horizon.  

 

 

Existing Infrastructure:  

Water:   There is 8 inch waterline in the private drive to the west of the development    

Streets:   Table Rock and Biddle Road  are major arterial streets owned and maintained by 

Jackson County.   The private drive to the west is a private retail street.  

Storm Water:   There is 24” Storm Drain line in the private drive that has adequate capacity for 

the proposed development.  Jackson County also has a line on Biddle that may be 

accessible. 

 

Issues:  

 

There are two main issues: 

1.  Reciprocal Access – The application shows public access thru the subject site.  Permanent 

easements for the development of the private retail street and the access to the west are 

needed for access, circulation and vehicular movements.   

 

2. Storm Utility Connection -  The proposed development shows connection to the Jackson 

County storm drain system. There is limited capacity in this system, so it will be 

necessary for the applicant to coordinate with Jackson County to determine if any of the 

storm run-off associated with this development can be connected to the existing system.  

 

 Public Works Department 
 

 

 
      Matt Samitore, Director 

justing
Typewritten text
Attachment "E"



 

Conditions of Approval:  

  

 

1. PW Standards and Specifications – Applicant shall comply with the public works 

standards and specifications for construction within the right of way.  

 

2. Jackson County – Applicant shall obtain all the necessary approvals from Jackson County 

Roads for the construction of a new access for the private retail street on to Table Rock 

Road and for any public utility connections.  

 

3. Landscape Row -  The applicant will be required to install a landscape row with street 

trees on the Biddle Road and Table Rock Road frontage.   Maintenance of that landscape 

row is required by the adjoining property owner, in this case each individual lot, per 

CPMC.  

 

4. Storm Water Quality -  The project is within the Phase 2 stormwater quality area and will 

require a stormwater management plan that is in accordance with the Rogue Valley 

Stormwater Quality Design Manual (RVSQDM). An operations and maintenance 

agreement for all new stormwater quality features is required. Construction on site must 

be sequenced so that the permanent stormwater quality features are installed and 

operational when stormwater runoff enters. 

 

5. Erosion Control. – The proposed development will disturb more than one acre and will 

require an erosion and sediment control permit (NPDES 1200-C) from the Department of 

Environmental Quality (DEQ). 



justing
Typewritten text
Attachment "F"





 
K:\DATA\AGENCIES\CENTPT\PLANNG\SUBDIVISION\2020\SUB-20001_TABLE ROCK 
CROSSING.DOC 

 
ROGUE VALLEY SEWER SERVICES 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
 
 

  Location: 138 West Vilas Road, Central Point, OR - Mailing Address: P.O. Box 3130, Central Point, OR 7502-0005 
                                              Tel. (541) 664-6300, Fax (541) 664-7171    www.RVSS.us 

  
 

 
April 10, 2020 
 
Justin Gindlesperger 
City of Central Point Planning Department 
155 South Second Street 
Central Point, Oregon   97502 
 
Re: SUB-20001, Table Rock Crossing, Tax Lot 700, Map 37 2W 01C 
 
The existing property currently does not have sewer service. There is an existing 8 inch sewer main 
and manhole just west of the subject property. Sewer service for the proposed development will 
require a sewer main extension into the property from the existing manhole. Sewer connection 
permits will be issued upon acceptance of the sewer main and payment of related fees.  
 
Rogue Valley Sewer Services requests that approval of the application be subject to the following 
conditions: 
 

1. The applicant must provide sewer construction plans prepared per RVSS standards for 
review and approval. 

 
 
Feel free to call me with any questions. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Nicholas R. Bakke, PE 
District Engineer 

justing
Typewritten text
Attachment "G"



Planning Commission Resolution No.  879  (05/04/2020) 

 

 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO.  879 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION APPROVING A TENTATIVE PLAN 

FOR AN 8 LOT SUBDIVISION TO BE KNOWN AS TABLE ROCK CROSSING. 
 

(File No: SUB-20001) 

 

WHEREAS, the applicant has submitted a tentative plan application to create an 8 lot subdivision 

consisting of commercial property identified on the Jackson County Assessor’s map as 37S 2W 01C, Tax 

Lot 700, Central Point, Oregon; and 

WHEREAS, the project site is located in the C-4, Tourist and Office Professional zoning district; and 

 

WHEREAS, the application has been found to be consistent with the applicable approval criteria set forth 

in Title 16, Subdivisions and Title 17, Zoning, and per conditions noted in the Staff Report dated May 5, 

2020; and 

 

WHEREAS, on May 5, 2020, at a duly noticed public hearing, the City of Central Point Planning 

Commission considered the Applicant’s request for Tentative Plan approval for Table Rock Crossing. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Central Point Planning Commission by 

Resolution No. 879 does hereby approve the Tentative Plan application for Table Rock Crossing, 

based on the findings and conditions of approval as set forth in Exhibit “A,” the Planning 

Department Staff Report dated May 5, 2020, including attachments incorporated by reference.   
 

PASSED by the Planning Commission and signed by me in authentication of its passage this 5
th
 day of 

May, 2020. 

       

 

      __________________________________ 

       Planning Commission Chair 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

City Representative 

 

 

justing
Typewritten text
Attachment "H"



stephanieh
Typewritten Text
ITEM VII-B: CONSIDERATION OF A COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AND ZONE MAP CHANGE ON 12.12 ACRES INVOLVING SEVERAL PROPERTIES FROM COMMERCIAL MEDICAL (C-2(M)) TO RESIDENTIAL SINGLE FAMILY (R-1-6) AND CIVIC.



 
City of Central Point, Oregon     
 140 S 3rd Street, Central Point, OR 97502 
 541.664.3321 Fax 541.664.6384 
 www.centralpointoregon.gov   

STAFF REPORT 
May 5, 2020 

 
AGENDA ITEM:  File No. CPA-19006 
Public Hearing to Consider a Comprehensive Plan Amendment and Zone Map Change 
application to change the zoning designation on multiple properties totaling 12.12 acres south of 
Bush Street between South 4th and South 1st Streets from C-2(M) Commercial-Medical to R-1-6 
(Residential Single Family) and Civic. The project area is identified on the Jackson County 
Assessor’s map as 37 2W 11BC, Tax Lots 800 through 5000 and 37S 2W 11BL, Tax Lots 100-
700. Applicant: City of Central Point.  
 
STAFF SOURCE:  
Tom Humphrey AICP, Community Development Director 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The City is initiating minor comprehensive plan and zone map amendments in an area 
identified as the C2M Land Use Study Area in the Land Use Element of the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan. This area has been in transition since the close of the Asante Medical 
Facility. The Asante property and adjoining home sites were designated for Commercial-
Medical uses in the past but this designation is no longer applicable. At the time the Land 
Use Element was being considered for adoption in 2018 the Asante Corporation was 
negotiating the sale of their property and it is clear with its sale to School District #6 that the 
property will no longer be used for medical purposes.  
 
The School District asked the City to initiate a zone change for their property alone but under 
the circumstances the City considers it wise to eliminate the medical zoning designation 
altogether. Since there are many single family homes in the C-2(M) zoning district, residents 
and property owners may wish to have their commercial zoning changed to residential 
zoning at no expense to them. The change will allow residents to maintain their single family 
homes or duplexes and to add ADUs if they choose. It will also allow the future expansion of 
School District #6 facilities. In consideration of this application, there are four criteria that 
should be addressed: 
 

1. Statewide Planning Goals. A finding of consistency with the applicable statewide 
planning goals applies to both major and minor amendments to the Comprehensive 
Plan (reference CPMC, Chapter 17.96.500 Approval criteria). The proposed 
Comprehensive Plan Land Use revision and Map change constitute an amendment to 
employment and residential land uses in Central Point. In each case the City has 
performed a Buildable Lands Inventory the results of which support these changes.  
 

 

 
Community Development 
Tom Humphrey, AICP 
Community Development Director 

http://www.centralpointoregon.gov/


The changes are compatible with 1) a Civic Goal: To include in each land use 
category sufficient public lands for land uses related to community public facilities, 
such as city hall, public schools, community centers, etc. and 2) a Residential Goal:  
To preserve the value and character of older-single-family neighborhoods through 
proper zoning, including reasonable efforts to encourage maintenance and 
rehabilitation as an alternative to transitional development at higher densities. Staff 
believes that proposed changes are consistent with Statewide Planning Goal 2 – Land 
Use Planning (Attachment B). 
 

2. Comprehensive Plan Compliance.  The current land use plan designation for the 
property is Commercial Medical and was designated a study area in the 
Comprehensive Plan Land Use Element because it was an area in transition. The 
proposed Low Density Residential and Civic land use and zoning designations would 
be consistent with the existing and the proposed uses in the neighborhood. The 
properties in question will be given more realistic land use categories that have been 
adopted by the City and are consistent with City goals, policies and actions. 

 
3. Compatibility with Surrounding Land Uses and Zoning. The proposed zone map 

amendment occurs on thirty three (33) lots south of Bush Street between South 4th 
and South 1st Streets. South 2nd Street is the main entrance into the School District 
property. This is an established neighborhood of predominantly single family homes 
which is contiguous to other neighborhoods of single family homes and civic uses to 
the north, south and east.  
 
Property owners and lenders have periodically questioned the legal non-conforming 
status of homes in this area during property sales and refinancing. This typically 
hasn’t proven to be a problem in the C-2(M) zoning district but it will be much 
clearer in the future if the homes were zoned exclusively residential. Preliminary staff 
analysis indicated that rezoning will not change property tax assessment.  
 

4. Traffic Impacts/Transportation Planning Rule Compliance. The State 
Transportation Planning Rule (TPR) in OAR 660-012-0060 requires changes to land 
use plans and land use regulations (i.e. Comprehensive Plan Map Amendments and 
Zoning Map Amendments) to be consistent with the function and capacity of existing 
and planned transportation facilities. The City contracted with a local engineering 
group (Ausland) who evaluated the impact the comp plan and zone change will have 
on traffic within the vicinity (Attachment (“C”). Their conclusion is that the proposed 
amendments will generate more daily trips than the current land use designations.  
Upon further investigation it appears that trips generated from homes in the existing 
zoning district were not included in the analysis.  They do show up in the proposed 
zoning district. If assumptions are reexamined, there should be no net increase in 
Daily Trips from one zone to the next. The Planning Department Supplemental 
Findings (Attachment “B”) reflect the conclusions in the engineer’s analysis.  

 
ISSUES: 
Staff is awaiting an answer from the traffic consultant and a resolution of assumptions used 
for the traffic analysis.   
 



ATTACHMENTS:   
Attachment “A” – Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Maps 
Attachment “B” – Planning Department’s Findings 
Attachment “C” – Ausland Group Traffic Impact Analysis 
Attachment “D” – Resolution No. 880 (Distributed at a later date) 
 
ACTION:   
Open public hearing and consider the proposed amendment to the Zoning Map, close public 
hearing and 1) recommend approval to the City Council; 2) recommend approval with revisions; 
or 3) deny the application. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
Recommend approval of Resolution No. 880 Per the Staff Report dated May 5, 2020 and 
supported by Findings of Fact. 
  



ATTACHMENT “A” 
Current Comprehensive Plan Map 

 
  



Current Zone Designation Map 

 
  



Proposed Comprehensive Plan Designation 

 
 

  



Proposed Zoning Map Change 

 



FINDINGS OF FACT 
AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

File No. CPA-19006 
 

Before the City of Central Point Planning Commission 
Consideration of a Comprehensive Plan Amendment and Land Use Redesignation on multiple 

properties totaling 12.12 acres south of Bush Street between South 4th and South 1st Streets. The 
property is identified on the Jackson County Assessor’s map as 37S2W 11BC, Tax Lots 800 

through 5000 and 37S 2W 11BL, Tax Lots 100-700. 
 
Applicant:          
City of Central Point and     )   Findings of Fact   
Central Point School District #6   )   and Conclusion of Law 
 

PART 1 
INTRODUCTION 

 
The above referenced tax lots are proposed to be redesignated and rezoned to low density residential and 
civic uses to conform with existing residential activity and to allow the redevelopment of a former 
medical facility for civic activity. The proposal will not have a widespread and significant impact 
beyond the immediate area.These findings have been prepared with the understanding that both the 
Comprehensive Plan (Map) and Zoning Map will be changed to become consistent with one another.  
 
The Comprehensive Plan Amendment involves a quasi-judicial map amendment, which is processed 
using Type III application procedures.  These procedures are set forth in Section 17.05.400 and provide 
the basis for decisions upon standards and criteria in the development code and the comprehensive plan, 
when appropriate.   
Applicable development code criteria for this Application include:  
 

1. Statewide Planning Goals 
2. Comprehensive Plan 
3. State Transportation Planning Rule 
4. CPMC, Chapter 17.96 

 
Findings will be presented in six (6) parts addressing the requirements of Section 17.05.400 as follows: 
 

1. Introduction 
2. Statewide Planning Goals  
3. Comprehensive Plan 
4. StatewideTransportation Rule 
5. Zoning Ordinance 
6. Summary Conclusion 

 
PART 2 

STATEWIDE PLANNING GOALS 
 

A finding of consistency with the applicable statewide planning goals applies to both major and minor 
amendments to the Comprehensive Plan (reference CPMC, Chapter 17.96.500 Approval criteria). 
 
 

stephanieh
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT "B"



Goal 2: Land Use Planning  
 
PART I – PLANNING  
 
To establish a land use planning process and policy framework as a basis for all decision and actions 
related to use of land and to assure an adequate factual base for such decisions and actions …  
 

Finding:  The proposed Comprehensive Plan Land Use revision and Map change constitute an 
amendment to employment and residential land uses in Central Point. In each case the City has 
performed a Buildable Lands Inventory the results of which support these changes. The changes  
are compatible with a Civic Goal: To include in each land use category sufficient public lands 
for land uses related to community public facilities, such as city hall, public schools, community 
centers, etc. and a Residential Goal: To preserve the value and character of older-single-family 
neighborhoods through proper zoning, including reasonable efforts to encourage maintenance 
and rehabilitation as an alternative to transitional development at higher densities. The 
proposed language reflects land use changes made by the City over time and identifies current 
land uses and zones approved by the City and acknowledged by the state. The Oregon 
Department of Land Conservation and Development was notified of this Comprehensive Plan 
Amendment and has not yet commented.   
 
Conclusion:  Consistent with Statewide Planning Goal for Land Use Planning. 
 

PART 3 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

 
The Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map currently designates the properties in question as the C2M 
Land Use Study Area and the land use application proposes to re-designate this land for Low Density 
Residential and Civic uses to match neighborhood designations. This area has been in transition since 
the close of the Asante Medical Facility. The Asante property and adjoining homesites were designated 
for Commercial-Medical uses but this designation no longer applicable. At the time the Land Use 
Element was being considered for adoption the Asante Corporation was negociating the sale of their 
property and it is clear with its sale to School District #6 that the property will no longer be used for 
medical purposes.  
 

Finding: The properties in question will be given land use categories that have been adopted by 
the City and are consistent with City goals, policies and actions.  
 
Conclusion:  Consistent. 

 
PART 4 

STATEWIDE TRANSPORTATION RULE 
 

Section 660-012-0060(1) Where an amendment to a functional plan, an acknowledged comprehensive 
plan, or a land use regulation would significantly affect an existing or planned  transportation facility, 
the local government shall put in place measures as provided in section (2) of this rule to assure that 
allowed land uses are consistent with the identified function, capacity, and performance standards (e.g. 
level of service, volume to capacity ratio, etc.) of the facility. A plan or land use regulation amendment 
significantly affects a transportation facility if it would: 
  

a) Change the functional classification of an existing or planned transportation facility; 



 b) Change standards implementing a functional classification system; or  
 

c) As measured at the end of the planning period identified in the adopted transportation system 
plan:  

 
(A) Allow types or levels of land uses that would result in levels of travel or access that are 
inconsistent with the functional classification of an existing or planned transportation 
facility;  
 
(B) Reduce the performance of an existing or planned transportation facility below the 
minimum acceptable performance standard identified in the TSP or comprehensive plan; or  
 
(C) Worsen the performance of an existing or planned transportation facility that is 
otherwise projected to perform below the minimum acceptable performance standard 
identified in the TSP or comprehensive plan.  

 
Finding 660-012-0060(1)(a):  The proposed plan amendment and zone change does not change 
the functional classification of an existing or planned transportation facility.  The proposed zone 
change from C-2(M)  to R-1-6 and Civic will not necessitate a change to any of the surrounding 
street classifications. Bush Street and South 1st, 2nd and 4th Streets are all local residential streets.   
 
Conclusion 660-012-0060(1)(a):  No significant affect. 
 
Finding 660-012-0060(1)(b):  A traffic analysis was performed for the proposed plan 
amendment and zone change however an error in an assumption of existing conditions rendered 
an incorrect conclusion about daily trips generated. Once the assumption is corrected it is 
expected that there will be no or an insignificant increase in daily trips from the existing zoning 
to the proposed zoning. Consequently, the proposed amendments will not cause a change to 
standards implementing the City’s transportation system. 
 
Conclusion 660-012-0060(1)(b):  No significant affect. 
 
Finding 660-012-0060(1)(c)(A):  The proposed plan amendment and zone change will not cause 
an increase in land uses that would result in levels of travel or access that would be inconsistent 
with the City’s functional street classification system for existing and planned transportation 
facilities. 

 
Conclusion 660-012-0060(1)(c)(A): No significant affect. 

 
Finding 660-012-0060(1)(c)(B): There are no known operational of safety concerns as a result 
of the proposed land use amendment and zone change. The proposed zone change will not 
reduce the performance of any existing or planned transportation facilities below the minimum 
acceptable performance standard identified in the Master Plan, or in the City’s Transportation 
System Plan.   

 
Conclusion 660-012-0060(1)(c)(B):  No significant affect. 
 
Finding 660-012-0060(1)(c)(C):  The proposed plan amendment and zone change will not cause 
the worsening of an existing or planned transportation facility that is otherwise projected to 
perform below the minimum acceptable performance standard identified in the Master Plan or 



Comprehensive Plan. No captital improvements are scheduled in the City’s TSP nor are they 
anticipated in this sector of the community.  
 
Conclusion 660-012-0060(1)(c)(C):  No significant affect. 

 
PART 5 

ZONING ORDINANCE 

17.10.300   Quasi-judicial amendments. 
A.  Applicability of Quasi-Judicial Amendments.  Quasi-judicial amendments are those that involve 

the application of adopted policy to a specific development application or code revision, and not the 
adoption of new policy (i.e., through legislative decisions).  Quasi-judicial zoning map amendments 
shall follow the Type III procedure, as governed by Section 17.05.400, using standards of approval in 
subsection B of this section.  The approval authority shall be as follows: 

 
1.  The planning commission shall review and recommend land use district map changes that do 

not involve major amendments; 
 
2.  The planning commission shall make a recommendation to the city council on an application 

for a comprehensive plan map amendment.  The city council shall decide such applications; and 
 
3.  The planning commission shall make a recommendation to the city council on a land use 

district change application that also involves a comprehensive plan map amendment 
application.  The city council shall decide both applications. 

 
Finding 17.10.300(A):  A plan amendment and zone change application has been submitted to 
redesignate 12.12 acres from Commercial-Medical to Low Density Residential and Civic. The 
proposal will not have a widespread and significant impact beyond the immediate area. The 
proposal will be considered by the planning commission and a recommendation will be made to 
the City Council for final decision.   
 
Conclusion 17.10.300(A): Consistent. 

 
B.  Criteria for Quasi-Judicial Amendments.  A recommendation or a decision to approve, approve 

with conditions or to deny an application for a quasi-judicial amendment shall be based on all of the 
following criteria: 
 

1. Approval of the request is consistent with the applicable statewide planning goals;  
 
Finding 17.10.300(B)(1): See Part 2, Statewide Planning Goals findings and conclusions. 
 
Conclusion 17.10.300(B)(1): Consistent 
 

2. Approval of the request is consistent with the Central Point comprehensive plan; 
 
Finding 17.10.300(B)(2):  See Part 3, Comprehensive Plan findings and conditions. 
 
Conclusion 17.10.300(B)(2):  Consistent. 
 

http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/CentralPoint/centralpt17/centralpt1705.html#17.05.400


3. The property and affected area is presently provided with adequate public facilities, services and 
transportation networks to support the use, or such facilities, services and transportation 
networks are planned to be provided in the planning period; and 
 
Finding 17.10.300(B)(3):  Public facilities, services and transportation  networks have been 
established pursuant to the City’s TSP and are sufficient to serve the allowable uses. The 
proposal will not significantly increase the demand on public facilities over the current uses. 
 
Conclusion 17.10.300(B)(3):  Consistent. 
 

4. The change is in the public interest with regard to neighborhood or community conditions, or 
corrects a mistake or inconsistency in the comprehensive plan or land use district map regarding 
the property which is the subject of the application. 
 
Finding 17.10.300(B)(4):  The proposed plan amendment and zone change are consistent with 
Strategic Planning goals, are in the interest of the community, are compatible with surrounding 
land uses and correct inconsistencies in the Comprehensive Plan and zoning maps.   
 
Conclusion 17.10.300(B)(4):  Consistent.   

17.10.600   Transportation planning rule compliance. 
Section 660-012-0060(1) Where an amendment to a functional plan, an acknowledged comprehensive 
plan, or a land use regulation would significantly affect an existing or planned  transportation facility, 
the local government shall put in place measures as provided in section (2) of this rule to assure that 
allowed land uses are consistent with the identified function, capacity, and performance standards (e.g. 
level of service, volume to capacity ratio, etc.) of the facility. A plan or land use regulation amendment 
significantly affects a transportation facility if it would: 
  

a) Change the functional classification of an existing or planned transportation facility; 
 
 b) Change standards implementing a functional classification system; or  
 

c) As measured at the end of the planning period identified in the adopted transportation system 
plan:  

 
(A) Allow types or levels of land uses that would result in levels of travel or access that are 
inconsistent with the functional classification of an existing or planned transportation 
facility;  
 
(B) Reduce the performance of an existing or planned transportation facility below the 
minimum acceptable performance standard identified in the TSP or comprehensive plan; or  
 
(C) Worsen the performance of an existing or planned transportation facility that is 
otherwise projected to perform below the minimum acceptable performance standard 
identified in the TSP or comprehensive plan.  

 
Finding 17.10.600(1):  See Part 4, Statewide Transportation Planning Rule findings and 
conclusions. 
 
Conclusion:  Consistent. 



PART 6 
SUMMARY 

 
Conclusion:  As evidenced in findings and conclusions, the proposed plan amendment and zone change 
are consistent with applicable standards and criteria in the Central Point Municipal Code, including the 
Statewide Planning Goals (where applicable), Comprehensive Plan, and Statewide Transportation 
Planning Rule.    



stephanieh
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT "C"







  ATTACHMENT “D” 

Planning Commission Resolution No. 880 (05/05/2020) 

PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 880 
 
 

A RESOLUTION FORWARDING A FAVORABLE RECOMMENDATION TO THE 
CITY COUNCIL TO APPROVE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AND ZONE MAP 

AMENDMENTS ON MULTIPLE PROPERTIES FROM COMMERCIAL-MEDICAL 
C-2(M) TO RESIDENTIAL SINGLE FAMILY, R-1-6 AND CIVIC ON 12.12 ACRES 
LOCATED SOUTH OF BUSH STREET BETWEEN SOUTH 4TH AND SOUTH 1ST 

STREETS.  
 (37S 2W 11BC, Tax Lots 800 through 5000 and 37S 2W 11BL, Tax Lots 100-700)  

 
File No. CPA-19006 

Applicant: City of Central Point 
 
 
WHEREAS, the Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map is proposed to re-designate the property 
identified by the Jackson County Assessor’s Map as 37S 2W 11BC Tax Lots 800 through 
5000 and 37S 2W 11BL, Tax Lots 100 to 700 as Low Density Residential (R-1-6) and Civic; 
and   
 
WHEREAS, the proposed R-1-6 and Civic zoning is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 
and surrounding land uses; and 
 
WHEREAS, adequate public services and transportation networks are available to the site; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed zone change from C-2(M) to R-1-6 and Civic has been determined 
to be consistent with the State Transportation Planning Rule.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Central Point Planning 
Commission, by this Resolution No. 880, does recommend that the City Council approve the 
change of zone on the property identified by the Jackson County Assessor’s Map as 37S 2W 
11BC Tax Lots 800 through 5000 and 37S 2W 11BL, Tax Lots 100 to 700. This decision is 
based on the Staff Report dated May 5, 2020 including Attachments A through D attached 
hereto by reference and incorporated herein. 
 
PASSED by the Planning Commission and signed by me in authentication of its passage this 
5th day of May, 2020. 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Planning Commission Chair 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 



  ATTACHMENT “D” 

Planning Commission Resolution No. 880 (05/05/2020) 

City Representative 


	CPA-19006 PC Staff Report 4-24-2020 (Final).pdf
	Attachment B -CPA 19006 Findings_4-24-2020.pdf
	Conclusion 660-012-0060(1)(c)(A): No significant affect.
	Finding 660-012-0060(1)(c)(B): There are no known operational of safety concerns as a result of the proposed land use amendment and zone change. The proposed zone change will not reduce the performance of any existing or planned transportation facilit...
	Conclusion 660-012-0060(1)(c)(B):  No significant affect.
	Finding 660-012-0060(1)(c)(C):  The proposed plan amendment and zone change will not cause the worsening of an existing or planned transportation facility that is otherwise projected to perform below the minimum acceptable performance standard identif...
	Conclusion 660-012-0060(1)(c)(C):  No significant affect.
	17.10.300   Quasi-judicial amendments.
	17.10.600   Transportation planning rule compliance.


	Blank Page
	Blank Page



